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SUMMARY PARAGRAPH 

The Springfield School is a two-and-one-half story, granite-faced educational faciiity, with 
a raised basement and a small penthouse. It is located at 608 N. 26th Street between Leigh and 
M streets in the proposed Upper Church Hill Historic District. Constructed in 1913, it is a good 
example of the Gothic Rev~val style. 

PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Springfield School is located on the east half of a rectangular block, some 1.2 acres, 
bordered by 25th and 26th streets and M and Leigh streets. The remainder of the site is covered 
by an asphalt parking lot and playground. Most of the surrounding area is residential and was 
developed between 1800 and 1939. 

The school has an H-shaped ground plan and rests on a poured-concrete slab foundation. 
Its structural system is load-bearing brick. Perhaps its most unusual and significant feature is 
its granite exterior finish. The roof is a built-up type with a crenelated parapet. On the west 
side of the roof is a one-story penthouse. The fenestration of the building is regular. It is 
composed rimarily of double-hung sash windows with 414 lights. Windows are arranged in 
groups of !I. ve in the classroom areas. 

The main entrance fronts on 26th Street and is part of a projecting central pavilion. The 
main entrance contains most of the ornamentation and stylistic features of the building. The 
exterior entrance is defined by a tudor arch with a labeled hood mold and two wrought iron, 
swinging gates with S-shaped shields (symbolizing Springfield School). On each side of the arch 
are apertures, a further feature of the Gothic style. A name plate above the entrance bears the 
subsequent name of Bowler School. The upper portion of the pavilion is completed by a 
crenelated and shaped parapet. A stylized date plate is centered in the shaped portion of the 
parapet- 

The Springfield School was constructed in 1913, replacing an earlier school constructed in 
1880 on the same site. The Springfield School is a good example of the versatility of standard 
school buildiing design. The Gothic styling of the building was common for this property 
but the use of granite on an institutional building is rare. However, other features o rP" thd 
building--the basic classroom size, expansive windows, high ceilings, and an open setting with 
adjacent playgrounds--were shared by schools ranging from one-room rural types to large urban 
schools. 

The Springfield School is currently vacant and in fair condition. Its interior has undergone 
some minor alterations, but its plan is intact, and many of its original features, including fine 
stairways, remain in place. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The Springfield School appears eligible for listing in the National Register under Criteria A 
and C. It is eligible under Criterion A for its association with an important p~ 3 of 
development in the history of the Richmond Public School system. It is further eligible under 
Criterion C for its association with a locally significant architect, its architectural style, the 
construction material used on its exterior, and the type of property it embodies. 

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

As early as 1869 a two-room school was operating on this site in a building known as 
Springfield Hall. By 1871 the building was referred to as Springfield School. In 1880 a new 
brick school, also named Springfield, was constructed on the site. Seven years later a second 
story was added. In 1913 the school was demolished and the present buiiding constructed in its 
place. In 1948, the Springfield School was renamed for J. Andrew Bowler, a highly respected 
civic leader and teacher, when it became the first former white school on Church Hill to receive 
black students. 

The Springfield School is associated with an important period in the history of public 
education in Richmond. Between 1870, when the Board of Public Instruction launched its initial 
acquisition and development program, and 1909, capital outlay for school construction was 
modest. In 1909, Dr. J.A.C. Chandler was named Superintendent of Richmond Public Schools. 
Dr. Chandler soon initiated an ambitious construction program which was overseen by Public 
School Architect Charles M. Robinson. Over the next twenty years most of the extant historic 
school buildings in Richmond were constructed. The Springfield School is one of the best 
examples of the schools constructed during this period. The Depression of the 1930s and World 
War I1 effectively ended this phase of school construction in Richmond. Not until after the war 
were schools constructed on a scale comparable to the 1909-1929 period. 

The Springfield School was designed by Carneal and Johnston, Architects and Engineers, of 
Richmond, a locally significant architectural firm. William Leigh Carneal, a native of 
Richmond, designed numerous buildings in the city. In addition to the Springfield School, he 
designed the Nathaniel Bacon School and the Virginia State Library on Capitol Square. He was 
also associated with the design of several buildings at Virginia Military Institute, Lexington and 
Virginia Polytechnic Institute, Blacksburg. 

The Springfield School was constructed of locally quarried stone by the Wise Granite 
Company of Richmond. It is a relatively rare example of the use of granite within the city of 
Richmond, where brick has been the most common masonry material. It is one of only two 
extant public schools in Richmond extensively faced with granite. The use of granite was 
patticulariy appropriate to the Springfield School because of its Gothic styring. The granite lends 
greater authenticity to the Gothic styling whose origins date to the medieval period and are 
closely associated with the architecture of churches and fortifications. 
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Another aspect of the architectural significance of the Springfield School is its Gothic Revival 
styling. During the 1830s the Gothic Revival style was championed in the works of Alexander 
Jackson Davis, the country's most prolific practitioner of the style. Davis's plans for houses and 
cottages were widely distributed in the popular books of Andrew Jackson Downing. Downing 
produced several pattern books which illustrated the suitability of the style to modest domestic 
architecture. Downing's publications made the Gothic one of the predominant building styles 
of the period. The Gothic Revival style was most popular in the United States between 1840 and 
1870, although it remained a popular building style for religious and educational buildings well 
into the 20th century. The Gothic Revival was particularly important in Virginia, where 
Alexander Jackson Davis designed a number of buildings, including the "Barracks" at Virginia 
Military Institute. The Springfield School is a high-style example of the adaptation of the Gothic 
style to educational architecture. 

Beyond its Gothic styling, the Springfield School shares certain traits common to hundreds 
of other schools throughout the country. While historic school buildings varied greatly in terms 
of their size, style, and materials, their designs did adhere to certain standards. The earliest 
published standards for school buildings date to 1832 when William A. Alcott prepared a brief 
treatise on school design. Alcott stressed that fresh air, space, and light were necessary in 
promoting a healthy learning environment. He suggested the liberal use of large windows, 
classrooms providing a separate desk for each pupil, and open surroundings for recreation. For 
more than a century afterwards, school architects followed similar standards. These schools 
featured a basic classroom size of about 25 by 35 feet, expansive windows, high ceilings, and 
an open setting usually with adjacent playgrounds and athletic fields. These characteristics were 
shared by schools ranging from one-room rural types to large urban schools. The Springfield 
School shares many of these traits and is a good example of the adaptation of the Gothic style 
to traditional school design. 

The Springfield School appears eligible for listing in the National Register under Criteria A 
and C. It is associated with a significant period of educational development as well as a locally 
prominent architectural firm. It embodies an important architectural style and building type, and 
is a rare example in Richmond of the use of granite as a construction material. 
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

BEGINNING at the point of intersection of the west rignc-of-way 
line of 26th Street and the south right-of-way line of 'M" Street 
331.32 feet, more or lese , to the point of interaecti on of the west 
right-of-way line of 26th Street and the north right-of-way lfne 
of Leigh Street; thence in a ,northwesterly direction along Leigh 
Street 125.62 feet, more or less, to an alley 12 feet in width; 
thence in a northeasterly direction along said alley 131.00 feet, 
more or less, to a point; thence in an easterly direction along 
said alley 39.22 feet, more or a s ,  to a point; thence in a 
northeasterly direction along said alley 18.00 feet, more or less, 
to a point; thence in a northwesterly direction along a property 
line 96.00 feet, more or less, to a point; thence in a 
northeasterly direction 151.00 feet, more or leas, to a point on 
the aouth right-of-way line of "Mu Street; thence in a 
southeasterly direction along the south right-of-way line of "M" 
Street 198.04 feet, more or leas, to the point of BEGINNING, and 
an shown shaded on Department of Public Works Drawing No. N-21966, 
dated Nay 18, 1989, on file in the Bureau of Engineering, 
Department of Public Works, of the City of Richmond and a copy of 
which is attached to the draft of Ordinance No. 89-158-143 on fila 
in the office of the City Clerk. Said property is nore 
particularly described on that certain plat of aurvey by Fred A. 
Gibson L Asmociate, dated Octobar 30, 1990, revised SUxch 16, 1991, 
reference to which plat is hereby made. 

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION 

The boundary is justified under the National Register Criteria in that it contains all the significant 
resources historically associated with the property. 




